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GRANT CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT
OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY
AND THE SEXUAL ASSAULT CENTER

This Grant Contract issued and entered into pursuant to Substitute BL 2024-373 by and between the
Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County ("Metra”), and Sexual Assault Center,
(“Recipient”), is for the provision of free legal assistance to residents in Davidson County who are
domestic violence victims, as further defined in the "SCOPE OF PROGRAM". The Recipient's annual
report and audit are incorporated herein by reference.

A.
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SCOPE OF PROGRAM:
The Recipient will use the funds to:

1. Provide 100 medical legal exams to Davidson County resident victim/survivors of
sexual assault in our SAFE Clinic.

2. Provide 500 therapy sessions to Davidson County resident victim/survivors of sexual
assault.

3. Completion and maintenance of a mobile Safe Bar app for bar-goers, distribution of
drug detection cards, promotional materials, and marketing efforts, with the primary
purpose of enhancing community engagement and awareness of the Safe Bar
program, equipping bar-goers with tools and resources to prevent drug-related
incidents and promote public safety through targeted outreach and education.

The Recipient must spend these funds consistent with the Grant Spending Plan, attached and

incorporated herein as Attachment 1. The Recipient must collect data to evaluate the

effectiveness of their services and must provide those results to Metro upon request.

The Recipient will only utilize these funds for services the Recipient provides to documented
residents of Davidson County. Documentation of residency may be established with a recent
utility bill; voter's registration card; driver's license or other government issued-1D; current record
from a school showing address; affidavit by landlord; or affidavit by a nonprofit treatment, shelter,
half-way house, or homeless assistance entity located within Davidson County. Recipient agrees
that it will not use Metro funding for services to non-Davidson County residents.

Additionally, the Recipient must collect data on the primary county of residence of the clients it
serves and provide that data to Metro upon request.

GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant will be twelve {(12) months, commencing on July 1,
2024, and ending on June 30, 2025. Metro will have no obligation for services rendered by the
Recipient that are not performed within this term.

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

Maximum Liability. In no event will Metro's maximum liability under this Grant Contract exceed
one hundred and seventy-five thousand dollars ($175,000). The Grant Spending Plan will
constitute the maximum amount to be provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's
obligations hereunder. The Grant Spending Plan line items include, but are not limited to, all

applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred
by the Recipient.
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Subject lo modification and amendments as provided in section D 2 of Lhis agreement, this
amount will constitute the Grant Amount and the entire compensation to be provided to the
Recipient by Matro,

Payment Methodology. The Recipient will only be compensated for actual cosls hased upon
the Grant Spending Plan, not to exceed the maximum liability @stablished in Section G 1

Upon pragress toward the completion of the work, as described in Section A of this Giant
Contract, the Recipient shall submit invoices and any supporling documentation as requested by
Metro to demonstrate thal the funds are used as requirec by this Geant. prior to any paymant for
allowable costs  Such invoices shall be submitled no mare pften than monthly and indcate at a
minimum the amount charged by Spending Plan line-iterm for the perod invaiced, the amount
charged by line-tem to date the tatal amount charged for the period inveiced and the total
amount charged under this Grant Cantract to date

Recipient must send all invoices to Dolly Cock @ dollycook@jisnashville gov

Final invoices for the contract penod should be received by Dally Cook by August 15, 2024 Any
nvoice not received by the deadline date will nat be pracessed and all remaining grart funds will
axpire

Annual Expenditure Report. The Reaipient must submit 3 final grant Annual Expenditure
Repor, to be raceived by Metro's Office of Grants and Accountability (OGA), within 45 days of
the end of the Grant Contract  Said report must be in form and substance acceplable to Metro
and must be prepared by a Certified Publig Accounting Firm or the Cnief Financial Qfficer of the
Recipient Organization

Payment of Invoice. The payment of any invoice by Metro wili not prejudice Metro's right to
object ta the invoice or any other reiated matter. Any payment by Metro will neither be construed
as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided nor as an approvai of any of the costs
included therein

Unallowahle Gosts. The Recipient's invoice may be subject to reduction for amounts inciuded in
any Invaice or payment theretofore made which are determined by Matro. on the basis of audits
o1 monitoring conducted in accordance with the terms of this Grant Contract, to censtitute
unaliowanle costs. Utilization of Metro funding for services ta non Davidson County residents s
not allowed.

Deductions. Metio reserves the 1ight to adjust any amounts which are or become due and
payable to the Recipient by Matro under this or any Contract by deducting any amounts which are
or becorne due and payable to Melro by the Recipient under this or any Contract,

Trave! Compensation. Payment to the Recipiant for travel, meals, or lodging is subject tu
amounts and limitations specified in Metro's Travel Regulations and stiject Lo the Grant
Spending Plan

Electronic Payment Metro requires as a condition of this contract that the Recipient have on
file with Metra a completed and sigred "ACH Form for Electronic Payment” If Recipient has not
previously submitted the form to Metio or if Recipient's information has changed, Recipignt will
have thirty (30) days to complete, sign and return the: form Thereaftar, all payments to the
Recipient, under this or ary other canliact the Recipient has with Metro, must be made
electronically

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
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Required Approvals. Melro is nat bound by this Grant Contract until it is approved by the
appropriate Metro representatives as indicated on the signature page of this Grant.

Modification and Amendment. This Grant Contract may be madified only by a written
amendment that has been approved in accordance with all Metro procedures and by appropriate
legistation of the Metropalitan Couneil

Termination for Cause. Shauld the Recipient fail to properly perform its obligations under this
Grant Contract or if the Recipient violates any lerms af this Grant Contract, Metro will have the
right to immediately terminate the (Grant Gontract and the Recipient must return t» Metro any and
all grant menies for sarvices ar pragrams under the grant not perfarmed as of the termination
date. the Recipient must also return to Metro any and all funds expended for purpases contrary
te the terms of the Grant  Such termination will nol relieve the Recipient of any liability to Metro
for damages sustained by virtue of any breach by the Regcipient.

Termination—Notice. Metro may terminate the Grant Gontract without cause for any reason,
Said termination shall not be deemed a Breach of Contract by Metro Metro shall give the
Recipient at Igast thirty (30) days written notice before the effective termination date.

The Reciprent shall be entitled to receive compensatian for satisfactery, autharized service
compieted as of the effective termination date, but in no event shali Metro be lable to the
Recipient for compensation for any service that has not been rendered.

Upon such termination, the Recipient shall have no right to any actual general, special,
incidental, consequential, or any other damages whatsoever of any description or amoLnt

Termination —-Funding The Grant Canlract is subject to the appropriation and availability of
local, State and/or Federal funds. In the event that the ‘unds are not appropriated or are
otherwise unavailable, Metro shall have the right to terminate the Grant Contract immadiately
upon wrillen rotice to the Recipient. Upon receipt of the written natice. the Recipient shall cease
all work associated with the Grant Cantract on or before the effactive termination date specifieq in
the written notice. Shoulid such an event occur, the Recipient shall be entitled to compensation far
alt satisfactory and authorized services completed as of the effective lermination date The
Recipient shall be responsible tor repayment of any funds already received ir excass of
satisfactory and authorized services complated as of the affective termination date

Subcontracting. The Recipient may not assign this Grant Contract or enter into a subcontract
for any of the services perfarmed under this Grant Contract without ohtaining the prior written
approval of Metro. Notwithstanding any use of approved subcantractors. the Recipient will be
considered the prime Recipient and will be responsible for all work performed.

Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient warranis that no part of the tatal Grant Amount will ba paid
directly or indirectly to an employee or official of Metro as wages, compensation, or gifts in
exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or consultant to the Reacipent
In connection with any work contemplated or performed relative to this Grant Contract

Nondiscrimination. The Recipient hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person will be
excluded fram participation in be denied benefits of, or be otnerwise subjected to discriminalion
in the perfonmance af this Grant Centract or in the employment practices of the Recipient on the
grounds of disabllity. age, race, color, religion, sex natianal orlgin, or any ather ciassification
which 15 in violation of applicable laws. The Recipienl must, upon request, show proof af such
nondiscrimination and must posl in canspicuaus places, available to all employees and
applicants, notices of nondiscrimination,
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Records. The Recipient must maintain documentatian for all charges to Metro under this Grant
Contract. The books, records, and documents of the Recipient, insofar as they relate to work
performed or money received under this Grant Contract, must be maintained for a period of thiec
{3) full years from the date of the final payment or until the Recipient engages a licensed
Independent public aceountant to perform an audit of its activities. The boaks, records, and
documents of the Recipient insofar as they reiate to work performed or money received under this
Grant Contract are subject to audit at any reasonable ime and upon reasonable notice by Metro
or its duly appointed representatives. Records must be maintaned in accordance with the
standards oullined in the Metro Grants Manual  The financial statements must be prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Monitoring. The Recipient's activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to lhis Grant
Contract are subject to monitoring and evaluation by The Metropolitan Office of Financial
Accountability or Metra’s duly appainted representatives The Reuipient must make all audit
accounting, or firancial records, notes, and ather documents pertinent to this grant available for
review by the Metropolitan Office of Financial Accountability, Internal Audit or Metro’s
represenlatives, upon requesl. during normal working hours.

Reporting. The Recipient must submit an Interim Report by no later than October 31, 2024. A
Final Program Report is to be received by the Office of Family Safety within 45 [forty-five] days
(August 15, 2025) of ihe end of the Grant Contracl. Said reports shall detail the Recipient's
progress on each of the core metrics identified in the grant solicitation and any program specific
and/or outcome measure identified m the Recipient's Grant Spending Plan as funded under this
Grant Contract

Additional metrics may be requested over the course of this cycle. Program Reports must be

submitted to ofsfinanceqrants@jisnashville.gov

Strict Performance. Failure by Metro to insist in any one or more cases upan the strict
performance of any of the terms, cavenants, canditions, or pravisions of this agreement is nat a
waiver or relinguishment of any such term, cavenant, condition, or prevision No term or condition
of this Grant Contract is considered to be waived, modified. or deleted except by a written
amendment by the appropriate parties as indicated on the signature page of this Grant

Insurance. The Recipient agrees to carry adequate public liability and other apprapriate forms of
Insurance, and to pay all applicable taxes incident to this Grant Contract

D.11.1 General Liability Insurance
In the amount of one million ($1,000,000.00) dollars

D.11.2 Automobile Liability Insurance
In the amount of ona million ($1,000,000 00) doilars (if vendor will be making on-site deliveries)

D.11.3 Sexual Molestation and Abuse Insurance
(n the amount of one million {$1,000.00C.00) dollars

D.11.6 Such insurance shall:

Gantain or be endorsed to contain a provision that includes METRO, its officials, officers
employees, and volunteers as additional insureds with respect tc liability arising out of work or
operations pertormed by or an venalf of the Recipient including materials, pars, or equipment
furnished in connection with such work or operations. The coverage shall contain no special
limitations on the scope of its protection afforded to the above-listed insureds,

For any claims related to this agreement, Recipient's insurance coverage shall be pomary
nsutance ay respects METRO its officers, officals. employees, and volunteers ANy NSUrance

4
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or self-insurance programs covering METRQ, its officials, officers, employees, and valunteers
shall be excess of Recipient's insurance and shall not contribute with it

D17

Prior to commencement of services, Recipient shall furnish METRO with original certificates and
amendatory endorsements effecting caverage requirad Dy this section and provide that such
msurance shall net be cancelled. allowed to expire, ar be materially reduced in coverage except
on 30 days' prior written notice to:

DEPARTMENT OF | AW

INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT
METROPOLITAN COURTHOUSE, SUITE 108
PO BOX 196300

NASHVILLE TN 37219-6300

Provide certified copies of endarsements and policies if requested by METRQO in iieu of or in
addition to certificates of insurance

Replace certificates, policies, and/or endorsements for any such insurance expiring prior to
completion of services Maintain such insurance fram the time services commence until services
are completed and attach the certificates of insurance in the METRO system TFailure to maintain
i renew coverage or to provide evidance of ienewal may be treated by ME RO as a material
breach of cantract

Place such insurance with insurer licensed to pusiness in Tennsssee and having AM Best
Company ralings of no less than A- Modification of this standard may be considered upon
appeal ta the METRO Oirectar of Risk Management Serv.ces

Any deductibles anafor self insured retentions greater than $10,000 60 must be disclosed to and
approved by METRO pnior to the commencement of services.

If ne Recipient has or obtains primary or excess palicy(ies), there shail be no gap between the
limits of the prmary policy and the deductible features of the excess policies

Metro Liability. Metro will have ro liability except as specifically pravided in this Grant Contract

Independent Contractor. Nothing herein will in any way be canstrued or interided to create 3
partnership or joint venture between the Recipient and Metra or to create the relationship of
principal and agent between or among the Recipient and Metro. The Recipient must not hold
itself out in @ manner contrary to the terms of his paragraph. Metro will not become lianie for any
representation, act, or omission of any other party contrary to the terms of this paragraph

Indemnification and Haold Harmless.

(@) Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Melro, ils ufficers, agenls and
employees from any claims, damages, penalties, casts and attarney fees for injuries or damages
arising, in part or in whale, from the negligent or intentional acts or amissions of Recipient. its
afficers, employees and/or agents, including its sub or independent contractors, in connection
with the perfarmance of the contract, and any claims, damages, penalties, costs and attarney
fees arising from any failure of Recipient, its officers, employees and/for agents, including its sub
or independent contractors, to observe applicable laws, including, but not limited to, labar laws
and minimum wage laws,
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{b) Metro will not indemnify, defend or hald harmless in any fashion the Recipient fram any
clains, regardless of any language in any attachrnent or other document that the Recipient may
provide

(¢} Recipient will pay Melro any expenses incurrea as a result of Recipient's failure to fulfill any
obligation in a professional and timely manner under this Cantract

(d) Recipient's duties under this section will survive the terminatian or expiration of the grant

Force Majeure. The abligations of the parties lo lhis Grant Contract are subject to praventicn by
causes beyand the parties’ contral that could not be avoidad by the exercise of due care
including, but not limited to, acts of Gad, riats, wars, strikes epidemics or any ather similar cause

State, Local and Federal Compliance. The Recipient agreas to comply with ali applicable
federal state and local laws and regulations in the performance of this Grant Contract.

Governing Law and Venue. The vaiidity, construction and effect of this Grant Contract and any
and all extens:ons and/or madifications thereof will be governed by ard canslrued in accordance
with the laws of the State of Tennessee. The venue far legal action concerning this Grant
Contract will be in the courts of Davidson County. Tennessee

Cornpleteness. This Grant Contract is complete and cantains the entire undarstanding hetween
the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and conditions
of the parties’ agreement. This Grant Contract supersedes any and all pricr understandings,
represenlations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties relating heretwo, whether
wrilten or oral

Headings. Section headings are for reference purposes only and will not be canstrued as part of
this Grant Contract.

Metro Interest in Equipment. The Recipient will take legal titie ta al equipment and ta all metor
vehicles, hereinafter referred tc as "equipment,” purchased totally or in part with funds provided
under this Grant Contract, subject ta Metre's equitable interest therein, to the extent of its oro rata
share, based upon Metro's contribution to the purchase price. "Equipment” is defined as an
article of nonexpendatle, tangivle, personal property having a useful life of more than one year
and an acquisition cost which equals o exceeds $5.000 00

The Recipient agrees to be responsible far the accauntability. maintsnance, management, and
inventory of all properly purchased (otally ar in part with funds provided under this Grant Contract.
Upen termination of the Grant Contract, where a further contractual relationship is not entered
into. or at any time during the term of the Grant Contract, the Recipient must request written
approval from Metro for any proposed dispositian of equipment purchased with Grant funds. Al
equipment must be disposed of in such a manner as parties inay agres as appropnate and in
accardance with any applicable federai, state or locai laws or regulations

Assignment—Consent Required. The provisions of this contract will inure to the benafit of and
will be binding upon tne respective successcrs and assignees of the parties hereto Except for
the rights of money due to Recipient under this contract, neither this cantract nor any of the rights
and obligations ¢f Recipient hereunder may be assigned or transferred in whole or in part without
the prior written consent of Metra. Any such assignment or transfer will not rclease Recipient
from its obligations hereunder. Nolice of assignment of any rights o money due to Recipient
uncer this Contract must be sent to the attention of the Metro Department of Finance

Gratuities and Kickbacks. It wil be a breach of ethical standards for any persaon to ofter, give or
agree ‘o give any employze or former employee, or for any employee or farmer employee to

6
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solict, demand, acceot or agree to accept from another person, a gratuity or an offer of
enpioyment in connection with any decision, appraval, disapproval, recommendation,
preparations of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request. influencing the contant
of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice investigation, auditing or in any
other advisory capacity in any proceesding or application, request for rdling, determination, claim
or coptroversy in any praceeding or application, raquest far raling, determinaticn, claim or
controversy ar other particular matter, pertaining to any program reguirement of a contract or
subcontract or ta any solicitation or proposal therefore i will be a breach of ethical standards for
any payment, gratuity or offer of employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcantractar uide
a contract to the prirme contractor ar higher tier subcantractor or a person associated therewith,
as an inducemenl for the award of a subcontract or arder Sreach of the pravisicns of this
paragraph is, in additicn to a bicach of this contract, a breach of ethical standards which may
resuilt in civil or criminal sanction and/or debarment ar suspension fram participation in
Metrapalitan Governiment contracts

D23 Communications and Contacts. Al instiuctions, notices, cansents, demands, or other
cammunications from the Recipient required or contemplated hy this Grant Contract must be in
writing and must be made oy facsimile transmission or by first class mail, addressed to he
respective parly at the appropriate facsimile number or address as set forth bealow or ta such
other party. facsimile number, or address as may be hereafter specifiad by written notice

Metro
frar contract-related matters; For enquiries regarding imvoices
LaToya Townsend Dally Gaok
Metro Office of Family Safety Metio Office of Family Safaty
610 Murfreesboro Pike 810 Murfraesbaro Pike
Nashville, TN 37210 Nashville, TN 37210
(615 862-5158 phone (615) 862 H072
Latoyatownsend@jisnashwville goy Dullycovk@jistushville. yov
ofsfinanceqrants@iisnastiville gov olshiancegrants @lisnashville oy
Recipient

Ms Rachel Freeman, President
Sexual Assault Centar

101 French Landing Dr
Nashvyille, TN 37228

(931} 241-4143

D24 Lobbying. The Recipient certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that

a

No federaily appropriated tunds have peen paid or will be pzid, by or on bahalf of lhe
Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an afficer or employee
of any agency. a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any faderal loan, and entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any federal contrast, grant, loan, or cooperalive
agreement

If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee uf uny agency, &
Member of Congress, an officer or emplayee of Congress. or an eniployee of a Member
of Congress ir connection with this grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient
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must complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Repart Lobbying," in
accordance with its instructions.

c The Recipient will require that the language of this certification be includad in the award
documents for all syb-awards at all tiers {including sub-grants, subcontracts, and
contracts under grants, loans, and coaperative agreements) and that all subcontractors of
federally appropriated funds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Iran Divestment Act In accordance with the lran Divestment Act, Tennessee Code Annolated &
12-12-1-1 et seq., Recipient certifies that to the best of ils knowledge and belief, neither Recipient
nor any of its subcontractors are on the list created pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated § 12
12-106. Misrepresentalion may resull in civil and criminal sanclions, mcluding contract
tarrmnation, debarment, or suspension frorn being a contractor or subcantractor under Metro
caontracts.

Effective Date. This contract will not be binding upon the parties until it has bean signed first by
the Recipient and then by the authorized representatives of the Metropolitan Government and
has been filed in the office of the Metropolitan Clerk. When it has been so signed and filed, this
contract will be effective as of the date first written abave

(THE REMAINDER OF THiS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK.)
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RECIPIENT: The Sexual Assault Center
By: M&MWﬂh
Titte: {1 edidert & CE0)

{NO44U248.1) 9
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THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT
OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON
COUNTY:

[V b
Office of Family Safety

APPROVED AS TO AVAILABILITY OF
FUNDS:

| bewns (}‘wbdfn\"w

Director of Finance

APPROVED AS TO RISK AND
INSURANCE:

m—eane,

| Balogen Cald
T NPT

Director of Insurance

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY

Bigned by

(e A Ward

QASCITCU04240

Metropolitan Attorney

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK:

Metropolitan Clerk

10
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METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF
NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY
GRANT SPENDING PLAN

RECIPIENT NAME: [Sexual Assault Center

Direct Appropriation I'Y23

1h 06/30/2025

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM
CATEGORY

Salaries and Wages

Professional Fees

Benefits and Taxes [(PERCENT)

FUNDS

METRO GRANT
$25.300.00

$4.700.00)|

~ THE FOLLOWING IS APPLICABLE TO EXPENSES PLANNED TO BE INGCURRED DURING THE
) __CONTRACT GRANT PERIOD: 07/01/2024 throu

RECIPIENT
MATCH
(pirticipalion) |

TOTAL PROJECT

$25,300.00

$4.700.00

$105.000.00]

$105,000.00

Supplivy

$35.000.00

Communications

$35,000.00

$0.00

Postage and Shipping o o - $0.00

Ocoupancy 1 $2.000.00 $2,000.00

[ [Couipment Rental and Mamisnance 80,00
B Prnting and Publicaions $0.00
Trawell Conferences and Meetings $0.00 $0.00

= Insurance $0.00
Specilic Assistance (o hdividuals $0%00

B Other Non-Personnel -IT N - $3.000.000 o S],O_OO—.OT)

GRAND TOTAL

$175,000.00

$0.00

$173.000.00




Docusign Envelope ID: 17142542-5BF9-4EDB-AG61A-11634457F6DF

Docusign Envelope ID: 1BBC6EA7-8731-4733-B402-723970C587C8

Docusign Envelope ID: BE37BBA2-F655-4078-BF9D-AE70D7C83CEF

Metro Office of
B Family Safety

Direct Appropriations FY'25
The Sexual Assault Center

Background:

The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County has selected The Sexual
Assault Center to receive Direct Appropriation funding for FY’25. These funds are
designed to further your organization’s mission consistent with the priorities of Metro
Government and Metro’s Office of Family Safety.

Primary Goal of Direct Appropriation Funding:

Goal: To better meet the crisis needs of Nashville & Davidson County victims of
interpersonal violence such as domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, human
trafficking, child abuse, and stalking, child abuse, and vulnerable adult abuse that are not
otherwise provided by the Metro Nashville Government and are not sufficiently provided
for by other community agencies.

’

‘eviou ar's Scope rk

1. Provide 100 medical legal exams to Davidson County resident victim/survivors of sexual
assault in our SAFE Clinic.

2. Provide 500 therapy sessions to Davidson County resident victim/survivors of sexual
assault,

3. Staff the Safe Bar program with a Full Time Training Specialist-Prevention to split their
time between expanding the Safe Bar program and conducting general primary
prevention trainings, including Bystander Intervention. Expected outcomes Include

organizing 3 community events and outreach initiatives and establishing 5 new
partnerships for providing trainings,

istribution of Dir

A formal contract will be signed outlining obligations and fund distribution.

Award Timeline

Changes to Statement ofS_cop_e & Metrics due to By_]uly 19,2024
OFS (upon receipt, contract will be sent) -
Signed Contract, budget, and disclosures due to

By July 26, 2024

OfF s ——
|_Estimated council Meeting for contract execution | Not required - -
_Award Start Date - | July 1, 2025 ] o

Invoicing due Minimum of monthly

Metric/Qutcome reports due quarte}'ly October 31,2024, January 31, 2025, and April

* Additional metrics and reporting may be 30, 2025, and July 30, 2025

requested over the course of this cycle. Program
Reports must should be submitted to LaTo ya
Townsend at latoyatownsend@jisnashvillegov
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ministration of D 1ds:
Metro’s Office of Family Safety (OFS) will monitor outcomes and metrics. Metro’s Finance
Department will oversee, monitor, and audit.
¢ The Direct Appropriation Funds Contract maximum liability will be $175,000.
® Metro's Office of Family Safety is not bound by the Grant Contract until the
appropriate Metro OFS representatives approve it.
¢ By submitting the Direct Apprapriation Funds Application, the applicant(s) admit

the obligation of providing program and financial reports quarterly and annually to
OFS representatives.

Metrics and Reporting

Direct appropriation recipients are to develop and report on metrics/outcomes that closely
track impactful and relevant operating performance variations, identify items that require
immediate attention, and support data-based decision-making. Metric/outcome reports
shall detail the outcome of the activities funded under this Grant Contract. Metrics and
outcome reporting are required quarterly (see timeline).

Grant Conditions:

e See contract

Primary points of contact: ofsfinancegrants@jisnashville.gov
¢ Financial:
Dolly Cook dollycook@ijisnashville.gov
ofsfinancegrants@jisnashville.gov

* Operations & Technical Assistance (outcomes & metrics):
LaToya Townsend (615-862-5159)
ofsfinancegrants@jisnashville.gov
latoyatownsend@jisnashville.pov

=

Funds may only be used to support those activities described in the contract.
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Farm No. l1la
i“gLaaa A48 =202
ot *for' g fie

- CHARTER
-oF

v N N - .
The Rape ‘and a»xual _Abuse Centar of Dautdaon Lount"

ey - [ . X » % =~
The undersmqﬁﬂd naru:al pvrann or'pnrson -havinq capacity Lo contrack
and .mr.ing as cl:c incor:pnrntor o 1ncarpornmr_ of a rorpe)c.n- ion under the
: Fapis oo = 1 e ;
Tennessee General Corparnitun Act, ndopL th"'rollnwtnu charter for such

Wl

corporation:

Ny RAbe : Sees o :
1. Thﬂ name oE th» Purpovatsnnllﬂ The Rape and Sexual Abuse Center °

7 6 u
(a ST .

of Davidson Coungy

2. The duxation of the corporatimn is Eﬂrnn:ual.

3. The address of the princlpal oificp of the :.orpqu‘m.itm in Ithr_.
State of Tennessee shall be g.p._§?¥_!égﬁjl;ﬂﬂéb?illﬁt Tennessee 37212,
County of 92!59522'- : '
4. ‘The curﬁo:;tion is not Eo?jéié%iu;
LS

5. Thp pux]_.m-ies Eor whu.h Lhc corporation’is urg.un.-ml are:

“dna’ ‘thelr t'amil.!.cs. ‘ RO 2
To' 1ncrea~;u ‘public awarencss .mcl to cducnta r_hc comumty .
: couLPrning the issues of; rape and sexual abuse. L o
To reduce the vulnerahzllty of people people as "the
targets of crime through rape prevention and education.
To Lncrease the xeporting rate, and to encourage vic-
tims Lo avail themselves of medical and legal asais-
tance.
To encoucage the demytholization of rape through media
presentation and education,
To increase the prosecution acceptance rate.

This corporation is to have no members.

Other provisions:

(1) The general welfare of society, not individual profity
is the object far which this charter is granted, and the
Board of Directos are not stock holders in the legal
sense of the term, and no dividends or profits shall he
divided amnong the Board of Diredtors.

The Board of Directors may at any time voluntarily dis-
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-

’ porotlnn 51‘;&11 =not: be‘employed directly or. lnrllrcctly Eor

y g:.t:xmate ob;ecL:. of‘itﬁ creation, and by no I.mpucatum' .

i hold any mot

October 19

LI
lnco:nm, L \:Eher ptOp('rtY crf Lhc r'or— :

any other purpééa uhat:evcr than to accompltsh Ehe hes.

shall it engage in any kind of r.raqu o;mrat:ion nor
eal estatc than .is AuUesHaAry !Ior its le-

gitimate purpos&

1978.

B e s o 7. ©OAA

Rebecca S. McCulloh
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TQ THE CHARTER
1 . o
s:cae,f‘&ﬁp%%’f AND SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER QF DAVIDSON COUNTY

' 00207 0099«
g Purgg r&‘ﬁ;t]zhe provisi . , ¢ 9 9 4

ona of Section 48-303 of the Tennessee
i General Corporations Act, the undersigned corpoaration adopts the
following articles of anendment to the Charter

1. The name of the corporaticn is “The Rape and 3Jexual Abub
Center of Davidson County," ’

2. The amendments adoned are as follows:

a. Paragraph (1) of item 7 of the charter of the corpora-

graph is inserted in its place.

(1} The Board of Directors may at any time voluntarily
dissolve the corporation. In the event of disso-
lution, the residual assets of the corporation
will be turned over to one or more organizations
which themsclves are tax exempt as descrived "Ln
sections 501(c)(3) and 710(c)(2) of the' Internal
Revenue Code of 1954, or corresponding sections of
any prior or future law, or to the Federal, State,
or local government for exclusive public purposes.

b. Item 7 of the charter of the corporation is amended by
adding thereto a Eourth paragrapn, as follows:

{4) dorwithstanding any other provision of this charﬂ
ter, this Lorporation will not ecarry onrany’ othcr

corporation exempt from Federal Income Itax. under
section 501(c)(3). of the Internal Revenue Code of °
1954 or the corresponding provisions of any future

Code of 1934 or any other corresponding provision
of any future United States Internal Revenue Law.

3. The amendment was duly adopted at a me2ting of the directors
on April 7, 19Hl.

4. The amendment (s to be effective immediately upon the filing
of these articles by the Secrerary of State.

Dated April 4, 1941.

e . The Rape and Sexual aAbuse Center
of Davidson County

Asalstant Secretary

v
i

tion is deleted in its entirety, and the following para-~

activities not permitted to be carried on. by (a) ‘a”

T
r

United States knternal revenus law, or_{b) a cor= .,
poration, . contributions to which are deductible
under sectfon 170(c)(3) o©f the Internal Revenué: -
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st

5, i ARe :
,—--‘tl.. - -J- ::Sn?. S \‘3}'{‘1&

et e i)
o il R =
t\b;qﬁ"wfng lrtlc‘l‘u :t?"

2. The mnemhmnt mbp‘bed 1:‘
k. ) ot )< vl T
4 ' " The street lddfress of the .‘nrporufon 1s chanqed t9:

\'he u'l‘ltnq ndo‘ress nf the l‘.orporatfon rm rmfn-

- P.0. aox 120831
Kashville, TM 37212

3. The amendment was duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors on
My 18, 1887,

4.‘. The mnd-er\t 1s to be,effective when these lric'les are filed by the

- Secr'etary of stats.

e e e o e e et

Dated; way 14, t8az?

The Rape and Sexual Abuse Center of Bav{dsen County

Y

_ o -7 .(j%;czq LA M Db = - -

Manda Webb,, President

et e et
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OF

SEERETART OF &
SEERE ! THE_RAPF_AMD_SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER QOF DAVIDSN LOUNTY, INC.

Pursuant to the pwvulons of Section -IS-GO-IBS of the Tmness« Nonprnﬁ Corporation A, the undcrsigncd
corporation adopts the following articles of amendment to its charter:

1. The name of the corporation is THE_RAPF_AND_SEXUAL A \mSi..m‘nmu}ym):’L{nm._mL
& 100 4

»

2. The text of cach amendment adopted is:
The principal office of the Oonx-r'ulm ";h:tll be loc-ued "
at 56 Lindsley Avenue, Nashwville, ™ 37210 .

3. The corporation is a nonprofit corporation.

4. The manner (il not se1 forth in the amendment) far implementation of any exchange, reclassification, or canvella-
tion of memberships is as follows:

5. The amendment was duly adopiad oo _April 13, 1989 by tthemoorperatare {the board o
directors without members’ approsal, as such is not reguired) rive-merbessh

{NOTE: Please strike the choices which do o apply o this amendment.)

6. Additional appraval fut the amendmend (as permiticd by Sectiun $8-60-20) of the Tennesser Nonprofin € Orpaora.
Hon Act) was not required.

“Aehdmromatbupprosal-for-theamendment-was reguisal by Jhe charreramd-was- obiainal
INOTE: Please strike the statement which duc"gﬂ apply 10 this amendment. ]

7. 1N 1he amendment is not 10 be effective when theve artichs are Tied by the Secretary of Srace. the date nme nowill
be effective is N/A

—— 19 fdacey flunc)

[NOTE: The delayed effective datc shall not be fater than the 90th day after the date this document is 113 by the
Secretacy of State.) —_

jdc_[ ‘7/ /0f7 THE RAPE AND SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER OF DAVIDSO
Ssn—.urvé_lc T - ..\al-m.:;E ton CIXNLY; INC
- E/‘/F)ﬁ//‘ %y . . / Lol A / 7% _.é.-‘_’{é_lft
Signer's Cap:@'_lﬁ// 2

Jeffersaon H. Ockerman
Name (1yped or printed)
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Thix natrument Prepared By: STeoe T r 3 A Loy 3
Patricia A. Montgomery (#016220) . T
Westlike & Marsdea, P.C. 5o V00
Third Mutional Finangjul Conter

424 Church w,'ﬁﬁu 1400
Nushvilleg TN 47219

{615) 726-3400

ST s Ja SRS B
koo H
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER
QF
THE RAPE AND SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER OF DAVIDSON COUNTY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-60-105 of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation Act, the
undersigned corporation hereby submits the following Articles of Amendment to amend its Charter and
states as follows:

1. The name of the corporation is changed as follows:

THE RAPE AND SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER

2, The corporation’s Charter is amended to add a new Paragraph B o limit the liability of
the corporation’s directors under certain circumstances allowed by law. The new paragraph shall read as
follows:

8. To the extent allowed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, no

present or future director of the corporation (or his or her estate, heirs
and personal representatives) shall be liable to the corporation for
monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director of the
corporation. Any liability of a director (or his or her estate, heirs and
personal representatives) must be further eliminated or limited to the
fullest extent allowed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, as may
hereafter be adopted or amended.

3. The corporation’s Charter is fucther amended to add a new Paragraph 9 to provide for
the indzmnification of, and advancement of expenses to, the corporation’s directacs and officers under
certain circumstances allowed by law. The new paragraph shall read as follows:
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- Lo idd [IDURDH ) PR

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER

OF

GEMTA" =il

SEERETARY OF 810 N_SEXIAL_ABUSE_CENTER OF DAVIDSON COUNTY, INC.

Pursuant 1o the pravisions of Section 43-60-105 of the Tennessee Nonproﬁ( Corporation Act, the undersigned
corporation adopts the lollowing articles of amendment 10 its charter:

1. The name of the corporation is THE_RADE_AND. SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER OF I;-;,U;}'H)]'i COUNIY. _INC..
i i LT

»

2. The text of each amendment adopied is: . wn:
The principal office of the Corporation 'shall be located
at 56 Lindsley Avenue, Nashville, TN 37210

3. The corporation is a nonprofit corporation.

4. The maaner (if not set forth in the amendment) foc implementation of any exchange, reclassification. v: vancelta-
tion of memberships is as follows:

3. The amendment was duly adopred on __April 13, 1989 . by ttheineerporatorsr (1 he buand ot
direvtors withour members’ approval, as such is no requined ) pre-memiess )

INOTE: Please strike the choices which do not apply to this amendment. )

6. Additional approsal for the amendmeni (as nermitted by Scction 48-60-301 of the Tenngssee Nonprolit Corpaora.
1on Act) was not required.

“dditemak-nppeoval for-the-amend war regquised by the charter-and-was- otained.
INOTE: Please strike the statement which ducs'_n_ql_ apply 10 1his amendment. )

7. i the amendment is not 1o be effective when these artiche are fied by the Sceretary of State, the dute teme i will
be effective is /A

_____ = A9 (daie) — ] 12} T

[NOTE: The defayed efective date shall not be larer than the 90th day afler the date this document is i@ by the
Secretary of Sialce.) — -

—— 2 '(" I -
ety LY LT T RAPE D SEXUAL AR CENTER GF DAVIDSOX
Signature/Dazie iName nﬁ Corpo

Tty i

Signer’s Capacity

ation 4,« -
-?_ __fﬁf;/{ééﬂa{f >
3 c

Jefferson H. Ockenman
Name {typed or prinied)
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
OF - !
RAPE & SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER .~ I —
Rt IV L Ve ARy
To the Secretary of State of the State of Tennessee: Qe G\r‘\ ‘ g ;b; N

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 48-60-105 of the Tennessee Nonprofit Corporation

Act (the “Act™), the undersigned corporation submits these Articles of Amendment to its Charter
as follows:

L. The name of the corporation is: Rape & Sexual Abuse Center.

2. Section | of the Charter is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as
follows: *“The name of the corporation is Sexual Assault Center (the “Company”).”

3. This Amendment was duly adopted by the Board of Directors the Company on
June 18, 2008. The Company does not have members at this time.

4, Additional approval of the amendment to the Charter as permitted by Section 48-
60-301 of the Act was not required.

5. This Amendment, which will constitute an amendment to the Charter, is to be
effective when filed with the Secretary of State.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed these Articles of Amendment
this 30th day of June, 2008.

RAPE & SEXUAL ABUSE CENTER

Nax'ne: - }-\\AV\-"F;‘?“ ResT
Title: . C\Mairwon,

0050290

2151077.1
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Secretary of State
Division of Business Services

i DATE: 07/10/08
2 E!gl.‘th Avenue North REQUEST NUMBER: 6365-1178
6th Floor, William R. Snodgrass Tower TELEPHONE CONTACT: (615) 741-2286
. FILE DATE/TIME: 07/10/08 1551
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 EFFECTIVE DATE/TIME: 07/10/08 1630

CONTROL NUMBER: 085%290

TO:

WALLER LANSDEN DORTCH & DAVIS LLP
511 UNION ST

STE 2700

NASHVILLE, TN 37219-8966§

RE :
SEXUAL ASSAULT CENTER
ARTICLES GF AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER

THIS WILL ACKNOWLEDGE THE FILING OF THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT WITH AN
EFFECTIVE DATE AS INDICATED ABOVE,

WHEN CORRESPONDING WITH THIS OFFICE OR SUBMITTING DOCUMENTS FOR
FILING, PLEASE REFER TO THE CORPDRATION CONTROL NUMBER GIVEN ABOVE.

PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT THIS DOCUMENT MUST ALSO BE FILED IN THE OFFICE
OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS IN THE COUNTY WHEREIN A CORPORATION HAS ITS
PRINCIPAL OFFICE IF SUCH PRINCIPAL OFFICE IS IN TENNESSEE.

FOR: ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT TO THE CHARTER ON DATE: a7/10/08
FEES

FROM: RECEIVED: $20.00 $0.00

WALLER LANSDEN DORTCH & DAVIS (511 UNION

511 UNION ST/#2700 TOTAL PAYMENT RECEIVED: $20.00

PO BOX 19B966

NASHVILLE, TN 37219-8966 RECEIPT NUMBER: 00004450682

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 00000832

‘ﬁf?f Ll
RILEY C. DARNELL
SECRETARY OF STATE
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PURYEAR &
NOONAN,CPAs

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Sexual Assault Center
Nashville, Tennessee

We have audited, in accardance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Sexual Assault
Center (the Organization), a nonprofit organization, which comprise the statement of financial position
as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, cash flows, and
functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 29, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control aver financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal

control. Accordingly, we do not express an cpinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we cansider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

{Auditor's report cantinued on next page)
-28-

A0 Burton thlls Blvel - Suite 170 Nashville, TN 37215 p: (615) 296-0500 t (615)296-0193
8230 Crescent Centre NDeive  Suite 320 Franklin, TN 37067 pn-cpas.com



Docusign Envelope ID: 17142542-5BF9-4EDB-AG61A-11634457F6DF

Docusign Envelope ID: 1BBC6EA7-8731-4733-B402-723970C587C8

Docusign Envelope ID: BE37BBA2-FB55-4D78-BF9D-AE70D7C83C6F

Report Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, cantracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with thase provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed na instances of noncampliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal contral and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose.

e

Puryear & Noonan, CPAs
Nashville, Tennessee
January 29, 2024

-29-



Docusign Envelope ID: 17142542-5BF9-4EDB-AG61A-11634457F6DF

Docusign Envelope ID: 1BBC6EA7-8731-4733-B402-723970C587C8

Docusign Envelope ID: BE37BBA2-F655-4D78-BFID-AE70D7C83C6F

PURYEAR &
NOONAN,CPAs

Independent Auditor's Report an Compliance For Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

The Board of Directors
Sexual Assault Center
Nashville, Tennessee

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sexual Assault Center's {the Organization), a nonprofit organization, compliance with
the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization's major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2023. The Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Casts.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2023,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federo! Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements

of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization's federal programs.

(Auditor's report continued on next page)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material nancompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting fram fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contraol.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or errar, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
cansider necessary in the circumstances.

] Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal contral over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate to thase charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identify during the audit.

(Auditor's report continued on next page)
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or aperation of a control aver
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal contro! over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over campliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, matetial weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control aver compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal contral over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

% ,
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Puryear & Noonan, CPAs

Nashville, Tennessee
lanuary 29, 2024
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Sexual Assault Center
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Far the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Sectionl Summary of Independent Auditor's Results
Financiol Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmadified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? [ Yes No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? L Yes (/] None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? []Yes No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? U ves No \
Significant deficiencylies) identified? JYes None reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major pragrams: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? L ves No

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Grantor Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Listing

Number(s)
16.575 State of Tennessee Department  Crime Victim Assistance

of Finance and Administration

Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes LINe

Section I Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported

(Continued on next page)
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Sexual Assault Center
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section (il Federal Award Findings and Que;tioned Costs

No matters were reported
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Sexual Assault Center
Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

No findings were reported during the prior year audit.
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Sexual Assault Center
Roster of Board of Directors and Leadership
As of lune 30, 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report

The Board of Directors
Sexual Assault Center
Nashville, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sexual Assault Center (the Organization),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of

activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows, for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Organization as of lune 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Organization as of June 30, 2022, were audited by cther auditars whose
report dated December 15, 2022, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's

{Auditor's report continued on next page)
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ability to continue as a going cancern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our apinion. Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefare is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standords will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

) Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose aof expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit is conducted for the purpose of farming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other recards
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing

{Auditor's report continued on next page)
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procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other recards
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual teport. The other
information comprises the Roster of Board of Directors and Leadership but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion an the basic financial statements
does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 29,
2024 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisians of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/?/% f e s 2

Puryear & Noonan, CPAs
Nashville, Tennessee
January 29, 2024
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Sexual Assault Center
Statements of Financial Pasition
June 30, 2023
Without Donor WIith Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,650,618 S 186,524 S 1,837,142
Grants receivable 418,874 - 418,874
Contributions receivable : 230,177 230,177
Other receivables 8,856 . 8,856
Prepald expenses . 59,690 ) 59,690
Total Current Assets 2,138,038 416,701 2,554,739
Land, building, and equipment, net 3,450,451 - 3,450,451
Investments _ : 1,936,976 1,936,976
Total Assets S 5588489 $ 2,353677 $ 7,942,166
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable S 29,644 S -8 29,644
Accrued wages and payrall taxes _ 150,237 - 150,237
Total Current Liabilities 179,881 R 179,881
Total Liabilities 179,881 - 179881
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 5,264,850 5,264,850
Without donar restrictions - Board designated 143,758 - 143,758
With donor restrictions - 2,353,677 2,353,677
Total Net Assets 5.408.608 2,353,677 __7.762,285
Total Liabilities and Net Assets S 5,588,449 ) 2,353,677 $ 7,942,166

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes ta financial statements.
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Sexual Assault Center

Statements of Financial Position (Continued)

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants receivable
Cantributions receivabie
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Land, building, and equipment, net
Investments

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

June 30, 2022
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictians Total

Assets
S 1,366,815 S 252,258 S 1,619,073
147,632 147,632
206,383 206,383
8,681 8,681
41,213 41,213
1,564,341 458,641 2,022,982
3,432,044 3,432,044
- 1,749,595 1,749,595
S 4,996,385 S 2,208236 S 7,204,621

Liabllities and Net Assets

Accounts payable S 125,783 S - 8 125,783
Accrued wages and payroll taxes 157,485 - 157,485
Total Current Liabilities 283,268 283,268
Total Liabilities 283,268 283,268
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 4,713,117 4,713,117
With donar restrictions 2,208,236 2,208,236
Total Net Assets 4,713,117 2,208,236 6,921,353
Total Liabilities and Net Assets S 4,996,385 $ 2,208,236 S 7,204,621

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes ta financial statements.
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Sexual Assault Center
Statements of Actlvities and Changes In Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenue and Other Support
Grants
Individual and carporate gifts
Other
Special events
United Way
Donated services
Counseling feas
Investment incame
Transfers from restrictions
Net assets released from restrictions

Total Revenue and Other Support

Expenses
Program Services
Supporting Services
Management and general
Fundraising

Total Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

Without Danor With Denar
Restrictions Restrictions Total

2,855,625 $ ) 2,855,625
1,101,606 164,681 1,266,287
295,529 295,529
376,316 79,350 455,666
: 150,000 150,000
32,834 . 32,834
52,344 52,344
11,742 187,381 199,123
143,758 (143,758) .

292213 (292,213)
5.161.967 145,441 5,307,408
3,513,867 3,513,867
434,644 434,644
517,965 517,965
4,466,476 = 4,466,476
695,491 145,441 840,932
4,713,117 2,208,236 6.921,353
5408608 § 2353.677 & 7,762,285

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Revenue and Other Support

Grants

Individual and corporate gifts

Other

Special events
United Way
Donated services
Counseling fees
Investment loss

Net assets released from restrictions

Total Revenue and Other Support

Expenses

Program Services

Supporting Services
Management and general

Fundraising

Total Expenses
Increase {Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

Sexual Assault Center
Statements of Activitles and Changes in Net Assets (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Without Donor With Danor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

S 2,556,938 § . S 2,556,938
1,121,241 77,000 1,198,241
249,888 . 249,888

227,799 31,500 259,299

- 150,000 150,000

65,556 65,556

57,251 57,251
. {293,132) (293,132)

151,971 1151.971) .
4,430,644 __ (186.603) 4244011
3,668,536 3,668,536
459,289 459,283
299,064 o 299,064
4,426,889 4,426,889

3,755 __ (186.603) __[182,848)
4,708,352 2,394,839 72,104,201
) 4,713,117 § 2208246  § 6,921,153

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Sexual Assault Center
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Adjustments to Recancile Increase {Decrease) in Net Assets
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activitles

Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Realized and unrealized losses {gains) an investments
Capital campaign receipts

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets
Contributions receivable
Grants receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and payroll taxes

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flaws from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Investment (purchases) praceeds, net

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activitles
Capital campaign receipts

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Increase in Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash And Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash And Cash Equivalents - End of Year

2023

S 840,932

139,311

(201,457)

{23,794)
(271,242)
(175)
(18,477)

{96,139)
{7.248)

361,711

(157,717)
14,075

(143.642)

218,069
1,619,073

S 1,837,142

2022

S (182,848)

156,568

454
339,888
(14,252)

698
290,993
(526)
(18,619)

87,960
41,650

7

02,006
(97,192)
(45,937)

— (143,129)

14,252
14,252
573,129
1,045,944

S 1619073

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Sexual Assault Center
Statements of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

_Supporting Services

Management Total
Pragram and Suppaorting Total
Services General  Fundraising  Services Expenses

Salaries $ 2,243,7845 330,232% 268,619% 598,851% 2,842,635
Benefits and taxes 395,918 47,197 55,319 102,516 498,434
Total Salaries and Related Expenses 2,639,702 377,429 323,938 701,367 3,341,069
Temporary and professional services 319,724 12,004 13,838 25,842 345,566
Equipment and IT consulting 168,708 4,390 4,549 8,939 177,647
Occupancy 101,153 4,175 3,914 8,089 109,242
Supplies 59,028 5,601 8,085 13,686 72,714
Professional development 41,457 2,182 13,012 15,194 56,651
Donated services 32,834 - . . 32,834
Special events - - 143,947 143,947 143,947
Insurance 28,039 2,799 2,239 5,038 33,077
Miscellaneous expenses 1,211 170 709 879 2,090
Meetings 3,089 4,920 3,711 8,631 11,720
Licenses and fees 508 27 23 100 608
Total Expenses Before Depreciation 3,395,453 413,747 517,965 931,712 4,327,165
Depreciation 118,414 20,897 - 20,897 139,311
Total Expenses 535138678 434644$_ 517,965 5 952,608 $_ 4,466,476

Percent of Total Expenses 29% 0% 1% 100%

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Supporting Services

Management Total
Program and Supporting Total
Services General  Fundraising  Services Expenses

Salaries $ 2,090,849 § 337,202 % 158,535 5 495,737 5 2,586,586
Benefits and taxes 378,520 61,046 28,701 89,747 468,267

Total Salaries and Related Expenses 2,469,369 398,248 187,236 585,484 3,054,853
Temporary and professional services 592,769 20,357 20,480 40,837 633,606
Equipment and IT consulting 150,284 6,368 5,357 11,725 162,009
Occupancy 83,192 4,932 3,935 8,867 92,059
Supplies 69,079 4,184 2,826 7,010 76,089
Prafessional development 72,105 2,603 1,022 3,625 75,730
Donated services 65,556 = - - 65,556
Special events - - 63,821 63,821 63,821
Insurance 24,268 1,961 1,442 3,403 27,671
Miscellaneous expenses 9,351 600 - 600 9,951
Meetings 1,607 3,097 840 3,937 5,544
Licenses and fees 1,189 254 1,535 1,789 2,978
Bad debt expense - 454 . 454 454

Total Expenses Before Depreciation 3,538,769 443,058 288,494 731,552 4,270,321
Depreciation 129,767 16,231 10,570 26,801 156,568

Total Expenses S 3,668,536 S 459,289 § 299,064 S 758,353 S__ 4,426 849

Percent of Total Expenses 83% 0% % 100%

See independent auditor's report and accompanying nates to financial statements.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Purpose

Sexual Assault Center (the Organization), was founded by volunteers in 1978 as a Tennessee
nonprofit corporation. The Qrganization is the only organization in Middle Tennessee dedicated
exclusively to serving victims of sexual assault. The Organization offers specialized services for rape
victims, child sexual abuse victims, adult survivors, and non-offending parents. These services
include individual, group, and family therapy, a 24-haur crisis line, a SAFE clinic, medical
accompaniments, assessments, court preparation, and training and community outreach for
partner agencies, schools, universities, other professionals and community groups. Funding for the
Organization's services is provided principally by federal awards passed through the Tennessee
Department of Finance and Administration and other federal awards, as well as from United Way
and individual and corporate donations.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements of the Organization are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting, under which revenues are recagnized when earned rather than when collected and
expenses are recognized when incurred rather than when disbursed.

Financial Statement Presentation
The accompanying financial statements of the Organization report its financial information
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be extended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. Net assets without danor restrictions may be designated for specific purposes by
action of the Board of Directars (the Board).

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors that can be fulfilled by actions of the Organization pursuant to those restrictions or
that expire by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donar has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to
net assets without donor restrictions in the Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets.

Measure of Operations

The Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets report changes in net assets, including
changes in net assets from operating and non-operating activities. Operating activities consist of
those items attributable to the Organization's ongaing activities. Non-operating activities are
limited to resources that generate return from donor-restricted contributions, net assets released

for capital expenditure, and other activities considered to be of a more unusual or non-recurring
nature.
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Program ond Supporting Services - Functional Expenses

The following program and supporting services are included in the accompanying financial
statements on the Statements of Functional Expenses:

Program Services - include activities carried out to fulfill the Organization's mission, resulting in
services provided to victims of sexual assaults and their families. This includes counseling and
therapeutic services through counseling, therapy, education, and advocacy. Program services
also include the support provided ta victims by volunteers through responding to crisis hotline
calls, assisting in medical accompaniments and general marketing, and training and community
outreach to inform families and professionals in partner agencies, schools, universities and
other professional alliances on how to recognize and reduce the risks of sexual abuse.

Supporting Services - Management and General - relates to the overall direction of the
Organization. These expenses are not identifiable with a particular program, event or
fundraising, but are indispensable to the canduct of those activities and are essential to the
Organization. Specific activities include organizational oversight, business management,
recordkeeping, budgeting, financing, infarmation systems, and other administrative activities.

Supporting Services - Fundraising - includes cost of activities directed toward appeals for
financial support, including special events. Other activities include the cost of solicitations and
creation and distribution of fundraising materials.

Clossification of Expenses

Expenses are classified functionally as a measure of service efforts and accomplishments, Direct
expenses, incurred for a single function, are allocated entirely to that function. Jaint expenses,
applicable to more than ane function, are allocated on the basis of objectively summarized
information or management estimates.

Use of Estimates

Management of the Organization has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the
reparting of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare these
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP). Actual results could differ from these estimates,

Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statements of Financial Position and the Statements of Cash Flows, the
Organization considers any liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents,

Fair Value Measurements

The Organization follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 820-10, Fair Value Measurements, with respect to its financial assets and
liabilities. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received ta sell an asset in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants on
the measurement date. Fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would
use when pricing an asset. U.S. GAAP established a fair value hierarchy that prioritized investments
based on those assumptions. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in
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active markets (observable inputs) and the lowest priority to an entity's assumptions
{unobservable inputs). The Organization groups assets at fair value based an the markets in which
the assets and liabilities are traded, and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair
value. These |evels are as follows:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabillties in active markets as
of the measurement date.

Level 2 - Other observable inputs, either directly or indirectly, including:

* Quoted prices for similar assets/liabilities in active markets;

® Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in nan-active markets;

* Inputs other than quoted prices that are ohservable for the asset/liability; and,

® Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data.

Level 3 — Unohservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data.

U.S. GAAP requires disclasure of an estimate of fair value of certain financial instruments. The
Organization's significant financial instruments are cash and cash equivalents, contributions and
grants receivable, investments, and other short-term assets and liabilitles. For these financial

instruments, carrying values approximate fair value. There are no financial instruments categorized
as Level 2 or Level 3.

Investment Valuation

Investments in certificates of deposit with original maturity dates greater than three months,
money funds, mutual funds, and marketable equity securities with readily determinable fair values
and all investments in debt securities are measured on a recurring basis at their fair values in the
Statements of Financial Pasition. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the Statements of
Activities and Changes in Net Assets.

Contributions Receivable

Contributions are recognized when the donar makes a promise to give that is, in substance,
unconditianal. Unconditional promises to give (pledges) that are to be collected within one year
are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be
callected in future years are initially recorded at the fair value of their estimated future cash flows
as of the date of the promise to give through the use of a present value discount technique. In
periods subsequent ta initial recognition, unconditional promises to give are reported at the
amount management expects to collect and are discounted over the collection period using the
same discount rate as determined at the time of initial recagnition.

The discount rate determined at the initial recognition of the unconditional promise to give is
based upon management's assessment of many factors, including when the receivable is expected
to be collected, the creditworthiness of the other parties, the Qrganization's past collection
experience and its policies concerning the enforcement of promises to give, expectations about
possible variations in the amount or timing, or both, of the cash flows, and other factars
concerning the receivables collectibility. Amortization of the discounts is included in suppart from
contributions. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they
depend are substantially met. An allowance for uncollectible pledges is recorded when the
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Organization determines, based on historical experience and collection efforts, that a contribution
receivable is uncollectible. No allowance for uncollectible receivables was considered necessary as
of June 30, 2023 or 2022.

Land, Building, and Equipment

Land, building, and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at their estimated market value at
the date of gift, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciatian is provided over the assets’ estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. Buildings, capital improvement, furniture and fixtures,
and artwork are depreciated over three to forty years.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs and items less than $5,000 are expensed when incurred.
Expenditures for renewals ar betterments are capitalized. When praperty is retired or sold, the
cost and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and the resulting
gain or lass is included in other income on the Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets.

In accordance with FASB ASC 360-10, Accounting for the impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, the Organization reviews the carrying value of land, building, and equipment for
impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and
eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this
assessment include current operating results, trends, and praospects, as well as the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition, and other ecanomic factors. Based on this assessment, there
was no impairment at June 30, 2023 or 2022.

When intangible assets are retired or sold, the cost and the related accumulated amartization are
removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is included in the Statements of
Activities and Changes in Net Assets,

Right-of-Use Assets and Liabilities

Right-of-use {ROU) assets represent the right to use the underlying assets for the lease term and
the lease liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the leases. ROU
assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based an the present value of future
lease payments over the lease term, which includes only payments that are fixed and determinable
at the time of commencement. When readily determinable, the Organization uses the interest rate
implicit in a lease to determine the present value of future lease payments. For leases where the
implicit rate is not readily determinable, the Organization's incremental barrowing rate is used. The
Organization calculates its incremental borrowing rate on a periodic basis using a third-party
financial model that estimates the rate of interest the Organization would have ta pay to borrow
an amount equal to the total lease payments on a collateralized basis over a term similar to the
lease. The Organization applies its incremental borrowing rate using a portfolio approach. The ROU
assets also includes any lease payments made prior to commencement and is recorded net of any
lease incentives received. Lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when
it is reasonably certain that the Organization will exercise such aptions.
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Revenue Recognition
Contributions
Contributions and other public support are generally recognized at the time of receipt as there
are no performance obligations that are required to be satisfied. Suppart that is restricted by
the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the
reporting period in which the support is recognized. The Organization reports any gifts of
property, equipment or materials as unrestricted support unless explicit donor restrictions
specify how the assets must be used and no performance obligations exist. Gifts of long-lived
assets with explicit restrictions as to how the assets are to be used or funds restricted for the
acquisition of long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Expirations of donor
restrictions are recognized when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service
as the performance abligation is considered to be met at that point in time.

Grants

Grant revenue results from agreements, typicaily with government agencies, that fund specific
activities of the Organization. The grants are of three primary types: unconditional
contributians, conditional contributions, and exchange transactions. An agreement is a
contribution if its primary purpose is to enable the Organization to provide a service to or far
the general public rather than to serve the direct needs of the granting or contracting party. In
other words, the agreement is a contribution if any benefit to the granting or contracting party
is indirect or insubstantial as compared to the puhlic benefit. The Organization recognizes grant
and contract revenue associated with unconditional contributions without donor stipulations as
revenue and net assets without donor restrictions. Unconditional contributions with a donor
stipulation that limits their use are reported as revenue and net assets with donor restrictions.
When a donor stipulated restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets
with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donar restrictions in the
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from restrictions. The
Organization recognizes grant and contract revenue associated with conditional contributions
as earned when conditions are met (allowable expenses have been incurred or as a milestane
are met) as net assets without donor restrictions. Any unused funds are forfeited, and if any
expenditures are unallowed, the Organization is required to refund the amounts drawn down.
In contrast, if the grant or contract provided a benefit directly to the granting or contracting
party, the agreement is an exchange transaction with a customer.

Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Uniform
Guidance and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the disallowance of
expenditures under the terms of the grant, or reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior
experience, the QOrganization's management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any,
would not materially affect the financial position of the Organization.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code
Section {IRCS) 501(c)(3), and, accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the financial
statements.

The Organization follows FASB 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, as it relates to
uncertain tax positions. For all tax positions taken by the Organization, management believes it is
clear that the likelihoad is greater than 50% that the full amount of the tax position taken will be
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ultimately realized. Therefore, management believes that no liability for unrecognized tax benefits
should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions taken on returns for the three most recent
years filed, or expected to be taken in the Organization's tax return. The Organization identifies its
major tax jurisdictions as the U.S. Federal and the State of Tennessee. However, the Organization is
not currently under audit nor has the Organization been contacted by either of these jurisdictions.
As of lune 30, 2023 and 2022, the Organization has accrued no interest and no penalties related to
uncertain tax positions.

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets and Services

The Qrganization receives various types of contributed nonfinancial assets donated by its members
in carrying out the Organization's operations that require specialized skills and would be purchased
if not provided by the donor at the fair value of services rendered. The Organization records the
value of services donated by graduate student interns, crisis telephone line workers, and medical
accompaniment volunteers at an hourly rate of $16. Donated services of $32,834 and $65,556
have been reflected in the accompanying Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets and
Statements of Functional Expenses for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Advertising and Promotion Costs

Advertising and promotion costs of $8,763 and $11,926 were expensed as incurred and expensed
during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

New Accounting Pronouncement, Not Yet Adopted

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-13, Financial
Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326):Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments
(ASU 2016-13), which modifies the measurement of expected credit losses on certain financial
instruments. In March 2022, the FASB issued ASU No. 2022-02, Troubled Debt Restriction Vintage
Disclosures (ASU 2022-02), which updated the requirements of ASU 2016-13 and added enhanced
disclosures for creditors with respect to loan refinancings and restructuring for borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty. ASU No 2016-13 is effective for the fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2022. The Organization is currently evaluating the impact that adoption of this ASU
will have on the Organization's financial pasition and results of operations.

Events Occurring After Reporting Date

The Organization has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between July 1, 2023 and
January 29, 2024, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, for
possible recagnition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Nate 2 - Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, leases (ASU 2016-02). ASU 2016-02 which
requires lessees to recognize leases on the Statements of Financial Position and disclose key
information about leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 was subseguently amended by ASU 2018-
01, Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842; ASU 2018-10, Codification
Improvements to Topic 842, Leases; and ASU 2018-11, Torgeted Improvements. ASU 2016-02
establishes a ROU model that requires a lessee to recognize a ROU asset and lease liability an the
Statements of Financial Position for ali leases with a term longer than 12 months.
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Leases are also classified as finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern and
classification of expense recognition on the Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. The
Organization adopted the new standard effective July 1, 2022 using the aptional alternative
method of adoption. This method allows the Organization to apply the new requirements to only
those leases that exist as of July 1, 2022. There was no effect on the Statements of Activities and
Changes in Net Assets as a result of this adoption. Lease disclosures for the year ended lune 30,
2022 are made under prior lease guidance in FASB ASC 840.

Using the adoption of the new lease standard, the Organization has elected to apply the following
package of practical expedients:

» Contracts need not be reassessed to determine whether they are or contain leases.

¢ All existing leases that were previausly classified as operating leases continue to be
classified as operating leases, and all existing leases that were previously classified as capital
leases continue to be classified as finance leases.

* |nitial direct costs need not be reassessed.

The Organization has also elected the following practical expedients: (1) not to separate lease
components from non-lease companents, (2) as an accounting policy election, to apply the short-
term lease exception, which does not require the capitalization of leases with terms of 12 months
ar less, (3) the use of hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of ROU
assets, and (4) to apply the option not to assess whether existing ar expired land easements that
were nat previously evaluated are or contain a lease. At June 30, 2023, the Organization had no
significant ROU assets or liabilities that extended beyond 12 months.

From time-to-time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the FASB or other standards
setting bodies that the Organization adopts as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise
discussed, management believes the impact of any other recently issued standards that are not yet
effective are either not applicable at this time or will not have a material impact on the financial
statements upon adoption.

Note 3 - Availability and Liquidity

The Organization's financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or

other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the Statements of Financial Position date,
are as follows:

2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,837,142 § 1,619,073
Grants receivable 418,874 147,632
Contributions receivable, net 230,177 206,383
Other receivables 8,856 8,681
Investments 1,936976 _ 1,749,595
Subtotal - carried to next page 4,432,025 3,731,364
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Subtotal - carried forward from previous page 4,432,025 3,731,364
Less - Financial assets with donor restrictions, excluding

time restrictions that expire in the next twelve manths (2,353,677) (2,208,236)
Less - Board designated restrictions _{143,758) .

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures
over the next twelve manths S 1934590 S 1,523,128

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating and other contractual
commitments. For purpases of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a
12-month periad, the Organization considers all expenditures related ta its ongoing program
service activities as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities ta be
general expenditures. The Board has designated certain amounts as a reserve for capital
improvements. These amounts are not to be used for current operations; hawever, funds may be
drawn upon in the event of financial distress.

As described in Note 6, the Organization also has a line of credit that is available for general
operating needs.

Note 4 - Land, Building, and Equipment

Land, building, and equipment at June 30, 2023 and 2022, consists of the following:

2023 2022
Land S 552,618 S 552,618
Building 1,959,280 1,959,280
Building improvements 2,087,989 1,988,397
Furniture and fixtures 270,584 331,353
Artwark 12,805 12,905

4,883,376 4,844,553
Accumulated depreciation (1,432,925}  _ (1,412,509)

S___ 3450451 S__ 3432044

Depreciation expense related to buildings and equipment totaled $139,311 and $156,568 for the
years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Note 5 - Investments

The fallowing table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization’s assets at
fair value as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:
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Fair Value Measurements as of
June 30, 2023 using the following inputs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Government and corporate bands $ 343,078 $ - S - $ 343,078
Mutual funds 1,390,113 - 1,390,113
Interest bearing cash 203,785 I S - 203,785
Total financial assets $.1936976 S - § - $ 1,936,976

Fair Value Measurements as of
June 30, 2022 using the following inputs

Level 1 Leve] 2 Level 3 Total
Government and corporate bonds $ 343,363 $ - S - § 343363
Mutual funds 1,204,727 - - 1,204,727
Interest bearing cash _ 201,505 - - 201,505
Total financial assets $_ 1,749,595 § =S - §_ 1,749,595

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with various investments, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of certain investments will occur in the near term and that such
changes could materially affect the amounts reparted on the financial statements.

The following schedule summarizes the investment income (loss) in the Statements of Activities
and Changes in Net Assets far 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Interest and divident income (loss) ) (2333) § 46,756
Unrealized and realized (losses) gains on investments 201,456 (339,888)

S 199,123 ¢ (293,132)

The abave investment return is classified in the Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
for 2023 and 2022 as follows:

2023 2022
Withaut donor restriction S 11,742 § -
With donor restriction 187,381 (293,132)

$ 199,123 & (293,132)
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Note 6 - Line of Credit and Term Loan Agreement

The Organization has entered into a line of credit in the amount of $150,000 with a bank.
Borrowings hear interest at the institution's prime rate of interest plus 1.00% (8.25% at

lune 30, 2023) and matures on August 14, 2024. No borrowings were outstanding at June 30, 2023
or june 30, 2022,

Note 7 - Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes or periads:

2023 2022
Subject to expenditure for specified purposes:
Contributions receivable S 150,133 § 56,383
United Way - for following year 200,000 150,000
Building improvements 17,218 77,000
Fundraising event - for following year 49,350 31,500
Contributions far building purchase capital campaign -
for building repairs and maintenance - 143,758
Investment returns, net, on endowments 757,279 569,898
Held in perpetuity and not subject to a spending policy or
appropriation:
Endowment fund investments 1,179,697 _ 1,179,697
Total net assets with donor restrictions S__ 2353677  S___ 2,208,236

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the purpose
restriction specified by donors at june 30, 2023 and 2022 as follows:

2023 2022
Building and capital purpose S 292,123 S 151,971

S 292123 151,971

Note 8 - Board Designated Restrictions

The Board has designated that certain types of support received not be used for current operating
purposes. Such designation may be terminated at the discretion of the Board and does not
represent donor restrictions. A summary of designations at June 30, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Capital improvements S 143,758 § -
Total Board Designated Restrictions $ 143,758 S
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Note 9 - Endowment Fund

The Organization's endowment fund Includes donor-restricted endowment funds and funds
designated by the Organization to function as endowments. As required by U.S. GAAP, net assets
associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board to function as
endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donar-imposed
restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Low - The endowment fund is subject to the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and, thus, classifies amounts in its donor-
restricted endowment funds as net assets with donor restrictions because those net assets are
time restricted until the Organization appropriates such amounts for expenditure, Most of those
net assets also are subject to purpose restrictions that must be met before reclassifying those net
assets to net assets without donor restrictions. The Board has interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring
the maintenance of the purchasing power of the original gift amount that was contributed to an
endowment fund, unless a donor stipulates ta the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, when
reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the Board considers a fund to be underwater if
the fair value of the fund is less than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift
amounts donated to the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to be
maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument.
The Board has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in accardance with
the prudent measures required under the law. Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA, the Board
considers the following factors in making a determination tc apprapriate ar accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds:

= The duration and preservation of the fund

¢ The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
e General economic conditions

e The possible effect of inflation and deflation

* The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
e Other resources of the Organization

» The investment policies of the Organization

Spending Policy - The Board has approved an endowment spending policy to provide a predictable
stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under this policy, as approved by the Board, the
endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to provide a real total return, net
investment management fees that is consistent with spending policy requirements. Actual returns
in any given year may vary from this amount. To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the
Organization's investment policy is to maintain 60% in equity securities, 30% in bonds or
alternative investments, and 10% in cash and cash equivalents. The Organization's policy allows
annual withdrawals up to 4% of the average year-end value of the portfolio for the previous three
fiscal years for building maintenance and repairs, if needed. However, if the amount of funds in the
investment account is less than the balance of net assets with donar restrictions to be held in
perpetuity, no amount is withdrawn.
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Return Objectives and Risk Porameters - The Board has adopted investment and spending policies
for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs
supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment
assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the endowment fund
must hald in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s) as well as Board-designated funds. Asset
allocations are targeted to produce expected returns consistent with using long-term historical
returns of assets classes.

Strotegies Employed for Achieving Objectives - To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives,
the endowment fund relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and
dividends). The endowment fund targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater

emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent
risk constraints.

Funds with Deficiencies - From time-to-time, the fair value of assets associated with individual
donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the level the donor or UPMIFA requires the
endowment fund to retain as a fund of perpetual duration (underwater endowments). Deficiencies
of this nature are reported in net assets with donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022,
there were no such deficiencies. The Board has interpreted the UPMIFA and applicable state trust

law to permit spending from underwater endowments in accordance with prudent measures
required under law.

Endowment net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2023:

Without With Total Net
Danor Danor Endowment
Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Donor-restricted Endowment Funds:
Original donor-restricted gift
amount and amounts required to be
maintained in perpetuity by donor  $ - S 1179697 § 1,179,697

Accumulated investment gains - . 757,279 757,279
Total funds S - S 1936976 S$__ 1936976
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Endowment net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2022:

Without With Total Net
Donor Donar Endowment
Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Donor-restricted Endowment Funds:
Original donor-restricted gift
amount and amounts required to be

maintained in perpetuity by donar  § - § 1,179,697 $ 1,179,697

Accumulated investment gains - 569,898 569,898
Tatal funds ) - S 1749595 § 1,749,595

Changes in the endowment net assets for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

Without With Total Net
Donor Donor Endowment
Restrictions Restrictions Assets

Endowment fund net assets, June 30, 2021 § - $ 2,043,546 S 2,043,546
Net depreciation - (293,132) (293,132)
Appropriation of endowment assets for

expenditure - _ (819) _(819)
Endowment fund net assets, June 30, 2022 - 1,749,595 1,749,595
Net appreciation 187,381 187,381
Endowment fund net assets, June 30, 2023 S - S_ 1936976 § 1,936,976

Note 10 - Retirement Plan

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan covering all employees who
have completed one year of service. The Organization may provide a matching contribution up to a
maximum of 3%. The Organization made contributions of $25,913 and $31,398 to the plan in June
30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Note 11 - Credit Risk and Other Concentrations

The Organization generally maintains cash in excess of federally insured amaunts, The Organization
maintains its cash in high credit quality financial institutions and has not experienced, nor does it
anticipate, any losses with respect to such amounts. Additionally, the Organization's investments
are subject to market risk, the risk inherent in fluctuating market. The broker/dealer that is the
custodian of the Organization's securities is covered by the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation (SIPC), which covers investor losses, in same cases, attributable to bankruptcy or
fraudulent practices of brokerage firms.

The Organization receives a substantial amount of its support from grants, federal and state
agencies, and the United Way. Grant and United Way revenue comprised approximately 57% and
53% of total revenue and other support during fiscal years 2023 and 2022, respectively. A
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significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, could have an adverse impact
on the Organization's program and services.

The Organization also receives a significant amount of its support from contributions from donars.
During the year ended June 30, 2023, contributions from cne donor represented approximately
14% whereas during the year ended June 30, 2022 contributions from two donors represented
approximately 29% of contributions from individuals, corporations, and capital campaign donors.

Note 12 - Contingent Liabilities

The Organization recelved federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could result in disallowance of
expenditures, management believes that any required relmbursements would not be significant.
Accordingly, no provision has been made for potential reimbursements to the grantor.

Note 13 - Community Foundation of Middle Tennessee

The Community Foundation of Middle Tennessee (Foundation) maintains investments on behalf of
the Organization. The Foundation has ultimate authority and control over the investments and,
accordingly, the net assets of the Organization do not include these investments. The Organization
does anticipate receiving periodic investment earnings on its pro-rata share of the Foundation's
assets. The balance of the endowment fund held for the benefit of the Organization totaled
828,952 and $26,761 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Note 14 - Related Party Transactions

Periodically, the Organization receives voluntary contributions, gift-in-kind donations, and
volunteer lahor from various Board members and their companies throughout the year.
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Federal Grantor / Pass-Thaough Grantor [ Pi m Tit

Federal Awards

.5 Department of Justice;
Through Tennessee Department of Finance and Administration:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services;
Through Tennessee Department of Health and Human Services:

Through Tennessee Coalition to End Domestic and Sexual Violence:

U.5 Deparument of Treasury:
Through Metro Goverriment of Nashville and Davidson Coonties:

State Awards

Through Metre Government of Nashville and Davidsan Counties:

Sexual Assault Center
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Nome Assistance Llisting Number  Pass- Enfity | N r
Crime Victim Assistance 16,575 VOCA No. 41677
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 VOCA No. 39093
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 VOCA No. 39343
Crime Victim Assistance 16,575 VOCA No. 47705
Sub-tota) 16 575
Sexual Assault Services Farmula Program 16,017 SASP 46567
Sexuat Assault Services Farmula Program 16,017 SASP 46888

Sub-total 16.017

COVID-19 Family Violence Prevention and Services/Domestic
Viclence Shelter and Supportive Services 93.671 ARP 3, SA 47663

Sub-total 93.671

Education, Training, and Enhanced Services to End Viclence
Against and Abuse of Women with Disabilities 16.529 nfa

Sub-total 16.529

Sub-total thraugh US Department of Justice

Injury Prevention and Cantrof R h and State C: ity Based 93136 DOH RPE 74043
Sub-tot=| 83.136
Preventative Health & Health Services - Crisis Hotline 583.391 nfa
Sub-total 93,991

Sub-total through US. Department of Health amd Human
Services

COVID-19 Coranavirus Relief Fund 21.019 nfa
Sub-total 21.019
Sub-total through U 5. Department of Treasury

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Coronavirus Relief Fund N/A L-5029
Toral Expenditures of State Awards
Total of and State

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
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SEXUAL ASSAULT CENTER
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of Sexual Assault Center (the Organization) for the year ended June 30, 2023, The
information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federol Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) as codified by HHS at 45 CFR Part 75 . Because
the Schedule presents anly a selected portian of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to
and does not present the financia! position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies For Federal Expenditures
For purposes of the Schedule, expenditures for federal programs are recognized on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform

Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable ar are limited as to reimbursement,

The Organization did not expend any federal awards during 2023 in the form of nan-cash assistance or
provide any funds to subrecipients.

The Organization has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Note 3 - Contingencies

These programs are subject ta financial and compliance audits by grantor agencies. The amount, if any,
of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be determined at this time,
although the Organization expects such amou nts, if any, to be immaterial.
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